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SAO
DEANNA L. FORBUSH
Nevada Bar No. 6646
Email: dforbush@clarkhill.com
COLLEEN E. MCCARTY
Nevada Bar No. 13186
Email: cmccarty@clarkhill.com
CLARK HILL PLLC
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Telephone: (702) 862-8300
Facsimile: (702) 862-8400
Attorneys for Petitioner
Republican Attorneys General Association

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

REPUBLICAN ATTORNEYS GENERAL
ASSOCIATION,

Petitioner,

vs.

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE
DEPARTMENT,

Respondent.

Case No.: A-18-780538-W
Dept. No.: IV

STIPULATION AND ORDER
REGARDING BRIEFING SCHEDULE

Petitioner Republican Attorneys General Association ("RAGA") and Respondent Las

Vegas Metropolitan Police Department ("Metro") wish to pursue a briefing and hearing

schedule in this matter that allows for full briefing of the legal issues but also expedites this

matter as quickly as feasible in accordance with NRS. § 239.011(2) ("Nile court shall give this

matter priority over other civil matters to which priority is not given by other statutes).

Accordingly, the parties hereby stipulate and agree as follows:

/ / /

///

/ / /
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1. On September 6, 2018, RAGA filed its Public Records Act Application Pursuant

to NRS § 239.001/Petition for Writ of Mandamus ("Application") Against Metro.

2. For purposes of accommodating RAGA's request for expeditious review and

priority, pursuant to NRS 239.011(2) and to allow the parties time to fully and concisely brief

all pertinent matters, RAGA shall have until September 26, 2018, to file its memorandum

detailing the supporting points and authorities in support of its Application.

3. Metro shall then have up to and until October 10, 2018, to file its response to

Application and any supporting memorandum.

4. RAGA shall have up to and until October 15, 2018, to file a reply to any

response and any supporting memorandum filed by Metro.

5. The parties respectfully request that the Court set a hearing on the Application

on October 17, 2018.

6. No previous extension of any dates has been granted in this matter. This

stipulation is submitted in good faith, is reasonably necessary, and is not sought for any

purposes of delay. Rather, it sought to expedite this matter in accordance with the Nevada

Public Records Act and present issues to the Court for its consideration efficiently.

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /

/ / /
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7. By entering this stipulation neither party waives any rights, responses, defenses,

or arguments concerning the Application filed by RAGA, other than any arguments regarding

the timeliness of the Application and any related supporting briefing, response, or reply should

the parties comply with the deadlines set forth herein.

DATED this day of September, 2018. DATED this day of September, 2018.

CLARK HILL PLLC

By:
DEANNA L. FORBUSH
Nevada Bar No. 6646
COLLEEN E. MCCARTY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 13186
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Telephone: (702) 862-8300
Attorneys for Petitioner
Republican Attorneys General
Association

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By: 
JACKIE V. NICHOLS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 14246
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89145
Telephone: (702) 207-6091
Attorney for Respondent
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department
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7. By entering this stipulation neither party waives any rights, responses, defenses,

or arguments concerning the Application filed by RAGA, other than any arguments regarding

the timeliness of the Application and any related supporting briefing, response, or reply should

the parties comply with the deadlines set forth herein.

DATED this day of September, 2018.

CLARK HILL PLLC

By: 
DEANNA L. FORBUSH
Nevada Bar No. 6646
COLLEEN E. MCCARTY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 13186
3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy., #500
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Telephone: (702) 862-8300
Attorneys for Petitioner,
Republican Attorneys General
Association

DATED this 17  day of September, 2018.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

/99G

y:
JACKIE V. N HOLS,
Nevada Bar o. 14246
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89145
Telephone: (702) 207-6091
Attorney for Respondent,
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department

Q.
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ORDER

IT IS SO ORDERED this  ?day of  LA-4-1*- 7-2018.

IT IS SO FURTHERED ORDERED that the hearing on the Application shall be set for

  IiJ/p.m. on the
1,7 
( day of  CCD6Q-r- 201$.

Submitted by:

CLARK HILL PLLC

By:  f
DEANNA L. FORBUSH
Nevada Bar No. 6646
COLLEEN E. MCCARTY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 13186
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Telephone: (702) 862-8300
Attorneys for Petitioner
Republican Attorneys General Association
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TRAN 

DISTRICT COURT 

 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

 

* * * * * 

 

REPUBLICAN ATTORNEYS GENERAL 

ASSOCIATION, 

                      

Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE 

DEPARTMENT, 

                       

Defendant. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

)

)

)

)

) 

 

  CASE NO.   A-18-780538 

             

   

  DEPT. NO.  IV 

 

 

Transcript of Proceedings 

BEFORE THE HONORABLE KERRY EARLEY, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

ORDER SHORTENING TIME 

 

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2018 

 

APPEARANCES: 

   

  For the Plaintiff: COLLEEN E. MCCARTY, ESQ. 

     DEANNA FORBUSH, ESQ. 

 

 

  For the Defendants: JACQUELINE NICHOLS, ESQ. 

     NICHOLAS D. CROSBY, ESQ. 

 

 

  RECORDED BY:    SHARON NICHOLS, DISTRICT COURT 

  TRANSCRIBED BY:   KRISTEN LUNKWITZ 

 

 

 

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript 

produced by transcription service. 
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FRIDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2018 AT 9:00 A.M. 

 

THE COURT:  780538.  Counsel, give your appearance 

for the record. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Good morning, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Yes. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Colleen McCarty on behalf of the 

Republican Attorneys General Association, joined by Deanna 

Forbush. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. FORBUSH:  Good morning. 

THE COURT:  Good morning. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Jackie 

Nichols on behalf of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 

Department. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. CROSBY:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Nick 

Crosby on behalf of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 

Department. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  I’ve reviewed 

everything.  I’m trying a little bit to figure out what the 

plaintiff wants.  As you know, I did give an earlier date 

on the Petition for 10/17 and that’s confirmed.  A lot -- 

sorry.  That’s horrible.  A lot of the argument in here is 

the substance and I know some of it overlaps.  It’s kind of 
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similar.  I did a lot of criminal law.   

Are what you asking me is basically that the judge 

looking at some -- the body cam footage to prepare for the 

hearing?  Because, obviously, I can’t have you look at -- 

that’s -- I’m not going to -- that’s waiving the privilege.  

I’ve never heard of a counsel saying, well, let me look at 

it.  I mean, if what you’re saying -- and I’m just trying 

to figure it out.  So you can correct this crazy voice, 

but, I mean, I needed to -- I had sexual assault cases and 

there was some footage of some things that you can imagine 

that they felt were privileged.  The defense would say, 

hey, DA or Metro, you’re telling us it’s this, this, and 

this.  We don’t know that.  We want you, Judge.  We 

understand privileges.   

So, I kind of equated it to that.  If I 

misunderstood, help me.  What is it that you want today for 

relief?  That would help me out. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Absolutely, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  You, obviously, have read response, 

Opposition, and -- 

THE COURT:  I -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- so have we. 

THE COURT:  I’ve read everything. 

MS. MCCARTY:  And -- 

JA000142



 

 4 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

THE COURT:  I actually even went to the Petition. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Right.  And, respectfully, -- 

THE COURT:  To be on -- the arguments. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Respectfully, the Petition is not 

offered today. 

THE COURT:  No.  Absolutely not.  I could not -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  What is offered today -- 

THE COURT:  -- give an order shortening time.  I 

just try to work with people when I -- if I think there is 

something that may help facilitate the Petition, is how I 

reviewed it. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Correct. 

What we are asking for is an order from this Court 

for attorneys’ eyes only viewing of the video in question.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  And we believe that not only do you 

have the authority to order such a review, the case law 

demands such a review.   

Just for the point of clarification because this 

point keeps getting misstated, what we are asking for is 

the videotape that involves Senator Aaron Ford, an adult.  

That is what we have asked for.  That is all we have asked 

for is the videotape and the records that relate to Senator 

Ford, the adult. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And so why is there a 
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miscommunication here?   Because they mentioned -- they 

have actually said they would get -- I mean, I read 

everything.  Right?  That’s not the issue.  You -- at least 

when I read it, tell us what you want, if there is a 

separate part that just shows Aaron Ford in the body cam 

that does not contain any footage of the -- any juvenile.  

Do you have any problem with that? 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, Your Honor, because -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. NICHOLS:  -- our -- 

THE COURT:  In what way? 

MS. NICHOLS:  Our argument is that the footage 

pertains to a juvenile incident.  So, for example, -- 

THE COURT:  Pertains to a juvenile incident? 

MS. NICHOLS:  Correct. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So, by that general umbrella, 

even if a juvenile is not in the footage, it’s still 

protected under the privilege? 

MS. NICHOLS:  That’s correct.  Under 62H.025. 

THE COURT:  No.  I know the privilege.  How do you 

have cases that make it that broad?  Are you saying that 

the body cam footage would contain -- because I haven’t 

seen it.  As you know, I’m just trying to reason through -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  -- what might -- that the body cam 
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footage, because of the substance within it, it would 

pertain to privileged information regarding juveniles? 

MS. NICHOLS:  That’s correct, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  I’m just trying to 

figure it out. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Just -- for an example, if they’re 

discussing the actual incident that the juveniles were 

arrested for, that is pertaining -- 

THE COURT:  That is -- because that is pertained -

- 

MS. NICHOLS:  -- to the juvenile incident. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.  All right.  So, -- all 

right. 

MS. MCCARTY:  So, Your Honor, we’re not here, 

again, to argue the Petition today. 

THE COURT:  No, we’re not.  I know and I felt like 

I’m -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  But, you know, when we do that -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah, last night I was doing it. 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- we will certainly -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  You tell me.  I have never, 

ever heard that an attorney who is trying to get a video 

from an entity saying, well, we can look at it, eyes only, 

and we can decide whether it’s -- or we can look at it and 

we can decide better to argue whether it’s privileged, I 
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guess is kind of what you’ve said in your thing.  We need -

- here’s how I read it.  I apologize for my voice.  I hope 

it doesn’t -- it’s irritating me. 

How I read what you said is:  Hey, we need to 

prepare for the Petition and so we need to look at it so we 

can better prepare our argument for the Petition. 

MS. MCCARTY:  That is absolutely -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  -- correct. 

THE COURT:  Now, you stood up and said to me I 

must give it.  What -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Correct. 

THE COURT:  -- case says that? 

MS. MCCARTY:  Gibbons.  Gibbons versus Reno 

Newspapers. 

THE COURT:  Oh, no -- okay.  That -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  It is 127 -- 

THE COURT:  No.  I read Reno.  You -- it’s -- I 

read that case. 

MS. MCCARTY:  And what it says -- let me first 

give you a broad -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  No.  Help me with the quotes 

because -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- overview.  All right. 

First of all, when we do argue the Petition, we’re 
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most certainly going to argue that 62H is inapplicable 

here. 

THE COURT:  Of course.  I get -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  62H is inapplicable -- 

THE COURT:  -- all that because otherwise -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- here because -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- NRS 289.830, which is the body 

cam statute, says without qualification, any record made by 

a portable event recording device pursuant to this section 

is a public record. 

THE COURT:  I’m not even going to argue -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Period. 

THE COURT:  Listen, I -- I’ve heard -- I’ve had 

body cam footage in a lot of my criminal -- this isn’t my 

first round of body cam footage -- usually it’s the DA -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Right. 

THE COURT:  -- to be very honest or the lady in-

house for Metro, not you, because it’s usually not involved 

civilly.  Believe me, I’ve heard this statute.  I’ve looked 

at body cams -- a lot of body cams to decide whether 

something is or is not privileged.   

MS. MCCARTY:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  It’s usually under a sexual assault 

where there’s -- there are statutes on privilege.  I agree. 
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If there’s not a privilege then you -- it -- you know, it 

is a public record.  No question.  But my -- what I’m 

trying to figure out is the authority to say you -- I’m not 

waiving their privilege by giving it to you.  Because what 

are you going to do with it?  You’re going to make the 

determination whether it’s privileged or not?  Because I 

think I’m supposed to do that. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Actually, -- 

THE COURT:  So, -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- because it says it must be both. 

THE COURT:  It must be what? 

MS. MCCARTY:  Both.  You and I. 

THE COURT:  Oh, I did not read that case -- I’ve 

never -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  -- heard of that.  So, tell me where 

it says -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  -- both in the case.  I have the case.   

MS. MCCARTY:  Absolutely. 

THE COURT:  I know I pulled the case.  Wallah. 

MS. MCCARTY:  If you can turn to -- 

THE COURT:  Tell me where.  

MS. MCCARTY:  If you turn to page 7.  I don't know 

what your printout looks like but it would be -- 
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THE COURT:  My printout -- okay.  Hold on just a 

minute. 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- 883. 

THE COURT:  My printout is 127 Nevada 873. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Paragraph 6 begins -- 

THE COURT:  Hold on.  Paragraph 6.  Okay.  It’s by 

-- hold on.  I’ll find it.  I read it three -- ah.  Two, 

three -- okay.  Para -- in and of itself?   

MS. MCCARTY:  In and of itself, -- 

THE COURT:  Correct. 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- an in-camera review is not 

 improper. 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MS. MCCARTY:  In parenthesis, in-camera review 

reinforces the notion that the courts, rather than 

government officials, are the final arbiter of what 

qualifies as a public record.  An in-camera review, 

however is not a replacement for a log when a log is 

necessary to preserve a fair adversarial proceeding.  

It must be -- 

THE COURT:  Correct.  You haven’t asked for an in-

camera log, which I think they would have a difficult time 

-- on these body cams, logs usually apply when you have a 

lot of records, you know, and they’re trying to say there’s 

a privilege because I even starred where you -- I don't 
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know.  I starred what you were talking about because I 

thought I’m not sure a log -- I don’t even -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Well, -- 

THE COURT:  -- think we could do a log and I 

agree.  I read it and it says a log doesn’t necessarily 

substitute for an in-camera review. My question is:  What -

- I’ve looked at -- I have no problem.  My thoughts were 

I’ll do an in-camera review.  I’ve looked at more footage 

than some days I would like to look at, but I totally agree 

that that would be my job.  I don’t mind -- I mean, I have 

no problem at all looking at -- but I’m not going to look 

at 16 hours.  Okay.   

I assume, right, because there’s a 16 hours 

reference because they didn’t -- the officer didn’t turn 

off the body cam.  Because that happens sometimes.  You 

know, they’re supposed to turn it off when an event -- no.  

I don't know their policy. 

MS. MCCARTY:  That is their policy. 

THE COURT:  It is -- okay.  It is my experience -- 

it is my experience, from the body cams that have come into 

this courtroom that when an event is concluded that it is 

turned off.  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  Correct.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  I guess -- and I agree with you 

on the log.  I read that.  I would -- I have never, ever, 
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and that’s my -- had any attorney from opposing side ask to 

review a privileged -- what the other side is claiming a 

privilege.  I want to be careful.  I’m not -- I haven’t 

real -- I mean, the in-camera review, I get.  I’m a little 

-- the basis to say that you should be able -- an attorney 

for your side should be able to be it is what kind of -- 

I’m not used to or I’ve never seen. 

MS. MCCARTY:  I think perhaps -- let me try to 

reorient you.  Rather than thinking of this as a criminal 

matter, -- 

THE COURT:  It’s not.  It’s the same issue though. 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- this is a civil matter.   

No.   but it’s not.  I mean, essentially, my 

opinion -- 

THE COURT:  Wait a minute.  A body cam, whether it 

is or is not privileged, how is it different for a criminal 

case than a civil case? 

MS. MCCARTY:  Because in a civil case, 

effectively, if I am not allowed to see this video, I will 

be coming into argue on the 17
th
 on what is essentially a 

dispositive motion not having seen any of the evidence. 

THE COURT:  All -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  And that is not what our rules 

provide for, that is not what -- 

THE COURT:  Well, -- 
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MS. MCCARTY:  -- Gibbons provides for.  Gibbons 

stands for -- 

THE COURT:  No.  Under NRCP -- I mean, you can 

either get a privilege log or as for in-camera.  I have 

never seen a Discovery Commissioner or myself in a civil 

matter, if they’re -- if the other side is claiming a 

privilege, they’re -- I’ve seen the log or asking for the -

- an in-camera review.  I’ve -- I don’t see -- and maybe 

I’m wrong.  I don't know.  I’ve never seen -- I have not 

treated it differently whether it’s a civil matter or -- I 

mean, I understand whether it’s a civil or criminal matter 

a privilege is a privilege.  Now, I agree, many times in 

the criminal situation, they don’t want to do a log.  They 

just want the Judge to look, honestly, because those cases 

-- well, yours is a little bit that way, it goes very 

quickly.  I mean, there’s more that -- which is why I took 

your Motion.  More of a sense of urgent -- sorry.  More of 

a sense of urgency to get the documents.  As, in civil, as 

you and I know, they’ll fight for months over what the 

privilege log says.  Right?  Not disparaging any civil 

attorneys, but they will.  I used to do it, too. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Your Honor, -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.  But I -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- Gibbons doesn’t stand for the 

proposition that a log must be provided.  Gibbons stands 
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for the proposition that a disclosure must be provided that 

allows for adequate adversarial testing.  Gibbons case was 

about a log, but that’s not -- 

THE COURT:  No.  I know. 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- what the decision is.  The 

decision is -- 

THE COURT:  I agree. 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- that they have to have adequate, 

adversarial testing.  It says: -- 

THE COURT:  Adequate -- 

MS. MCCARTY:   -- In view of the emphasis placed 

 on the -- 

THE COURT:  Where are you?  Let me -- because I 

have it in front of me. 

MS. MCCARTY:  I’m sorry.  Absolutely.  I’m at -- 

THE COURT:  I’m sorry.  I wrote -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- 882, the paragraph that begins:  

In view of. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I can’t look at the pages -- 

okay.  What are you -- are you still on paragraph 6? 

MS. MCCARTY:  No.  I’m back -- would be -- 

paragraph 4. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  Yes.  4. 

THE COURT:  4 and 5?  All right.  In front of that 
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is in view of the emphasis. 

MS. MCCARTY:  That’s the -- yes.  That’s the one. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I’ve got it. 

MS. MCCARTY:  In view of the emphasis placed on 

disclosure and the importance of testing claims of 

confidentiality in an adversarial setting, we agree 

with the Vaughn court that it is anomalous and 

inequitable to deny the requesting party basic 

information about the withheld records, thereby 

relegating it to advocating from a nebulous position 

where it is powerless to contest a claim of 

confidentiality. 

 Furthermore, requiring a requesting party to 

blindly argue for a disclosure, not only runs contrary 

to the spirit to the Nevada Public Records Act and our 

NRPA jurisprudence, but it seriously distorts the 

traditional adversary nature of our legal system’s form 

dispute resolution. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And then keep reading.   

MS. MCCARTY:  In such a claim, the records are 

confidential and can only be tested in a fair and 

adversarial manner, and in order to truly proceed in 

such a fashion, a log typically must be provided by the 

requesting party. 

THE COURT:  Not an in-camera review by the 
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adversarial side, but a log. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Gibbons was a valid log, but it 

doesn’t stand for the proposition that you only get a log.  

It stands for the proposition that -- 

THE COURT:  I’m not -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- you get the information you need 

to make an argument.  There is no log here that’s going to 

provide me the information I need to make an argument.  

THE COURT:  And I agree with you there because I 

tried to figure out -- if -- a way, in fairness, to both -- 

if I can do a log.  I cannot -- I could not come up with a 

way that -- and I actually looked at cases on when they do 

or do not provide a log and I -- I’m not going to disagree 

with you there.  I could not think of a way to do a log 

that would provide the information.  I agree with you 

there. 

MS. MCCARTY:  And, Your Honor, I’m an Officer of 

the Court.  I understand what my ethical obligations are 

and I’m asking to view this video for the sole purposes of 

being able to have adequate adversarial testing.  Metro 

doesn’t get to come in and say:  We have 16 hours of video 

that’s confidential and even though the Nevada Public 

Records Act requires us to redact, if you were to find that 

16H applies, which it does not, we say it’s confidential, 

we say it all involves juveniles, too bad, so sad, you 
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lose.  That’s not fair.  That’s not what the Nevada Public 

Records Act requires. 

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MS. NICHOLS:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  What about if I do the in-camera 

review? 

MS. MCCARTY:  I think Gibbons is clear it must be 

both. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. NICHOLS:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you.  That’s an interesting 

argument.  Now, I’ve heard that one before. 

MS. NICHOLS:  In going back to the Gibbons case, 

if you -- I don’t have it in front of me and so -- 

THE COURT:  I do, but if -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  -- I’m going to kind of summarize 

it. 

But, in essence, when you’re talking about the 

privilege log, first, the government entity was afforded 

the opportunity to make its case before they even got to 

the privilege log. 

THE COURT:  No.  I know.  She’s smart -- but my 

thought is she’s -- I get that.  But I think this is a -- 

the reason I review -- I think it’s fair we’re just -- she 

-- and I get it.  The plaintiff wants to make sure that 
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when they do have the Petition, that they have the most 

information.  Because what happens on some of this, and 

I’ll be honest, you argue it, and then I do an in-camera 

review.  I’m going to be very honest and I looked at this 

after I looked at her ex parte and the case law thinking 

that she was just -- that the plaintiffs were trying to get 

one step ahead.  I’ll be honest.  And I don’t find fault 

with that, to be very honest.  I don’t.  So, I don’t -- I 

thought it was ripe to argue.  Okay.  I’m not -- not the 

whole privilege, but ripe to argue what remedy, if 

anything, is available for them to be prepared for the 

Petition on October 17
th
.  That’s how I looked at it. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  Hopefully.  And that’s how you want 

it.  That’s what Reno -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Right.  We’re just asking for a 

level playing field.  

THE COURT:  No.  I -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  They know the information.  WE do 

not. 

THE COURT:  I know that. 

MS. MCCARTY:  And I can’t dispute their argument 

without it. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And I --  

MS. NICHOLS:  Your Honor, this case -- 
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THE COURT:  I understand that. 

MS. NICHOLS:  -- is about juvenile records.  And 

while they want to say that it’s about Senator Ford, the 

request was not for body cam footage pertaining to Senator 

Ford.  If you look at the request, it was for body worn 

camera footage -- 

THE COURT:  Do I have the request as any part of 

exhibits here? 

MS. NICHOLS:  It’s related -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Request Number 4 -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Hold on.  It’s -- she gets to 

speak.  I’m sorry. 

MS. MCCARTY:  I’m sorry.  My apologies. 

THE COURT:  I tried to be fair to you.  I’m -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  My apologies, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  I -- just if you’re -- if you 

have an exhibit, I’d like to look at it so I can follow it. 

MS. NICHOLS:  It’s part of the initial Petition, 

Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, I -- once again, I’m not 

here to do the Petition. 

MS. NICHOLS:  I understand. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. NICHOLS:  But the -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So what’s the -- let me ask 

JA000158



 

 20 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

this because I -- did you give -- did -- in the request, 

did you in any way modify it or say the sections of the 

body cam that we feel are privileged dealing because of the 

content is concerning juveniles and under the statute is 

there any of what they asked that you did offer to produce 

that just has Aaron Ford -- and I don't know.  I haven’t 

seen it.  So I’m not -- I’m just -- I’m giving a 

hypothetical -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  No, Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  -- okay so don’t -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  No, Your Honor, but -- 

THE COURT:  -- anyone think I’ve seen it or 

something, but Aaron Ford has footage talking separately to 

the police officer saying, yes, this -- I don't know.  I 

don’t know anything about this.  Okay?  So, yes, this is my 

house or anything like that.  Was that -- it -- if 

something like that is on -- let me ask this.  Would that 

have been considered, in your viewpoint, concerning a 

juvenile and you didn’t produce it?  Okay.  Or not?  I -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  It -- 

THE COURT:  -- couldn’t tell by reading -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, because it would be concerning 

-- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. NICHOLS:  -- the juvenile incident.   
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THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. NICHOLS:  The incident that’s at issue 

involves three juveniles.  And, so, any information related 

to that specific incident that’s contained in the body cam 

footage would be confidential. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. NICHOLS:  And now -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. NICHOLS:  -- there is 16 hours, but, as I had 

mentioned in my e-mail to counsel, the full 16 hours is not 

relevant to the specific -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  How -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  -- request. 

THE COURT:  -- much is? 

MS. NICHOLS:  I have not had a chance -- I’m in 

the process of obtaining a declaration from an officer 

detailing the videos, which is why we believe that this -- 

an in-camera review is not proper yet because we get the 

chance to meet our burden and with -- 

THE COURT:  Haven’t they been asking you for this 

since May or something?  I mean, I did it -- just, hold on 

just a minute.  You can answer.  I tried to do a timeline.  

Haven’t you -- because I’m looking:  Why is this coming, no 

offense, to me, the last minute, time sensitive, which I 

look at order shortening time because, you know, everything 
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seems to be a catastrophe at times and I get it.  That’s 

why I did do it.  Have they not been asking since around 

May or am I misinterpret -- I -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  It’s December, Your Honor.  We’ve 

been almost a year. 

THE COURT:  Last December?  Last -- there’s only 

been on December.  Right?  That’s December of 2017.  It’s a 

long week.  Okay.  All right.  So, then, your argument to 

me is:  Well, we haven’t had time to look at the footage or 

review it and you don’t think an in-camera is fair because 

you’re not ready for the judge to do an in-camera? 

MS. NICHOLS:  No, Your Honor.  That’s not it. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.   

MS. NICHOLS:  We were retained as counsel once the 

Petition was filed. 

THE COURT:  Oh. 

MS. NICHOLS:  The Department has reviewed and they 

-- 

THE COURT:  There you go. 

MS. NICHOLS:  And they do note, which is why I am 

getting the declaration from the officer who has reviewed 

the body cam footage, and it’s our position that the body 

cam footage related to the juvenile incident is completely 

confidential. 

THE COURT:  I’ve gotten it.  I -- I’m -- I get 
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your side and I get your side.  I’m just trying -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  So, -- 

THE COURT:  -- to figure out if -- and I 

understand.  Unfortunately, your client is Las Vegas 

Metropolitan Police Department.  So, actions they did prior 

to retaining you, you -- that’s part of what you -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  I understand.  

THE COURT:  -- have obligated to do when you -- 

not obligated, but that’s part of when you get a case.  

Okay?  So, I just -- I get it.  I understand that.  I’m not 

finding fault with your firm or anything.  Okay.  I don’t 

want you to think that you -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  No, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  In May, you guys sat on it because I 

get this is a civil case and we hear them.  I’m not doing 

that at all.  I’m just trying to figure out what the -- you 

know, if Metro -- if Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 

Department -- did they work -- I’m sorry.  I can’t think of 

the lady’s name.  She was in here all the time.  Who’s 

their in-house.  Did you look -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  Charlotte Bible, Ruth Miller, Lisa 

Freidman, Martina -- 

THE COURT:  No.  Martina -- her.  Right.  What’s 

her last name? 

MS. NICHOLS:  Geinzer.   
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THE COURT:  Yes.  Martina.  Okay.  So, Ms. 

McCarty, were you working with someone like Martina Geinzer 

or someone within Metro’s Legal Department before it went 

to Marquis Aurbach? 

MS. MCCARTY:  The chain of events, Your Honor, -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Just to help me on the timing. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Sure.  The chain of the events, 

based on the records, as I understand, is this. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  In December of ’17, my client asked 

for audio and video footage of Senator Ford, related to 

this incident.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Like in a subpoena, a -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  In a written public records request. 

THE COURT:  A written.  Okay.  Okay.  That’s fine. 

MS. MCCARTY:  At that time, Metro came back and 

said:  We don’t have enough information.  You need to give 

us some additional information.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  Additional information was provided 

in the second records request and my client asked for 

records pertaining to Senator Ford and/or a minor child 

because it wasn’t sure how Metro was categorizing and 

filing the records.  So they asked for both to ensure that 

they got what they needed. 
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THE COURT:  When was that? 

MS. MCCARTY:  At that time, -- 

THE COURT:  When was the second records request 

timing wise? 

MS. MCCARTY:  I’ve got it right here, Your Honor.   

[Pause in proceedings] 

MS. MCCARTY:  Actually, I’m sorry, Your Honor.  I 

don’t have that with me. 

THE COURT:  That’s fine.  I a, -- it just -- it 

impacts what I’m doing.  I’m trying to figure out the time 

thing and I -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  I thought I had it.  Oh, right here.  

Oh, yes.  I do.  I’m sorry. 

So, on 12/5 of ’17, the first request was made.  

THE COURT:  I -- okay. 

MS. MCCARTY:  They came back a month later.  So, 

untimely response.  And said:  We need more information.   

On March -- I’m sorry.  One -- so, it was denied 

on 12/14, asking for more info.  On 1/25/28, so January, we 

made the second request. 

THE COURT:  1/25.  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  Wherein we asked for the footage and 

some additional police records related to the incident for 

either Senator Ford and/or the juvenile. 

THE COURT:  Juvenile. 
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MS. MCCARTY:  Again, unclear as to how Metro would 

be categorizing and filing that information.  That was 

denied on 2/6.  Again, untimely.  And, at that point, the 

reason for the denial was that it was an open and active 

criminal investigation, which, as I’m sure this Court is 

aware, is not a basis to deny a public records request. 

RAGA said:  Okay.  Fine.  We’ll keep checking back 

and when the investigation is closed, we would like the 

records. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  So they came back on March 19
th
 of 

2018 with the third records request, again, asking for the 

same information from the second.  On May 15
th
, again, 

untimely.  They came back and changed their position and 

said:  Now, you can’t have it because it implicates 

juvenile suspects or juveniles arrested and, therefore, 

it’s confidential under 62H.  On 5/17, so immediately 

thereafter, RAGA wrote a fourth request further clarifying 

that all it was looking for was the records relating to 

Senator Ford. 

THE COURT:  All records related to -- so they took 

off the juvenile -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Correct. 

THE COURT:  -- to Aaron Ford.  Okay. 

MS. MCCARTY:  And explained that they were not 
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looking for any records that were implicated by 62H.  The 

entire purpose of the public records request is that 

Senator Ford is running for the office of Attorney General.   

THE COURT:  I’m aware of that. 

MS. MCCARTY:  And it’s RAGA’s position that the 

public has a right to know whether or not he interfered 

with a law enforcement activity.  And, so, they made it as 

clear as they could, hoping to -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So, what was the response to 

that when they then limited the fourth request to in -- the 

body cam footage regarding Aaron Ford?  What -- the -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  So, on 6/15.  Again, untimely.  They 

came back and the response didn’t even make any sense, 

which -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Just let me have it. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  I could -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  It says:  Your request to view or 

obtain the body cam is denied.  Any documents involving the 

arrest of juveniles is confidential and., therefore, you 

should withdraw your request -- you should direct your 

request to the juvenile court.  

But the other thing they said is they didn’t agree 

with our broad interpretation of 62H and we, of course, are 

arguing for the most limited -- 
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THE COURT:  Well, that’s why you’re here. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Yes.   

THE COURT:  I -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  Interpretation. 

THE COURT:  I’ve got that.  I see why you’re here. 

MS. MCCARTY:  But we don’t know why the -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  -- change in position, it was never 

explained, and it is certainly -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  -- untimely. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. MCCARTY:  One more piece of information if 

you’ll indulge me. 

THE COURT:  No.  Okay.   

MS. MCCARTY:  After we filed the lawsuit, Senator 

Ford’s campaign made public statements to the media and, in 

those statements, Senator Ford’s campaign said that he was 

called to the scene, as were all the parents of these 

juveniles, so that the matter could be resolved informally, 

which suggests that there were no arrests, which is why we 

have questions as to whether 62H was even implicated.  

Metro is now saying there were arrests.  Okay.  Fine.  But 

that’s part of our confusion is we have two different 

reasons for denial and then we have conflicting information 
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from Senator Ford’s campaign. 

THE COURT:  So you’re saying that’s why -- that’s 

part of the reason that -- looking at their position now, 

you’ve had conflicting positions.  I get that.  All right.  

All right. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Your Honor, just to clarify for the 

record that the petitioners knew since May of 2018 that the 

juveniles were arrested.  That’s what our response to them 

was and why 62H applied was because they were, in fact, 

arrested.  Now, even though Ford -- Senator Ford’s campaign 

comes in and says something different, that doesn’t mean 

that now all of a sudden they weren’t arrested.  What 

Senator Ford says in his camp -- 

THE COURT:  No.  I don't think it impacts that.  I 

agree. 

MS. NICHOLS:  In his campaign is completely 

different.  And, now, attached to our response was a 

declaration from the officer that the juveniles in this 

incident were, in fact, arrested.  So there’s no dispute 

here that they were arrested.   

If they are looking for records that pertain to 

Senator Ford, the Department doesn’t have records 

responsive to their request because the incident did not 

involve Senator Ford.  It involved the juveniles. 

THE COURT:  Well, wait a minute.  Just to say 
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whether Senator Ford is or is not on the body cam, to say 

it didn’t involve, that makes no -- I mean, I don't know 

what that means.  I’ll be very honest.  That’s not -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  Just for clarification -- 

THE COURT:  I’m not going to -- I don't think I -- 

I see body cam footage all the time that doesn’t involve 

the defendant, but there’s other issues that may come up, 

whether they got certain rights and stuff.  Okay.  So, -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  And I understand. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MS. NICHOLS:  And for clarification, Your Honor, -

- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MS. NICHOLS:  -- the way that the Department 

categorizes the body cam footage is related to the specific 

incident.  It’s not -- 

THE COURT:  I have that.  They have an event 

number and everything goes into that event number. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Exactly. 

THE COURT:  That I am extremely familiar with.  

I’ve had more testimony on -- and I get why -- it’s 

perfect.  That doesn’t necessarily mean for privilege 

purposes that everything within that evidence, which it 

should be.  It all goes to an event number because that’s 

why they gather the evidence because then it’s related -- 
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everything.  I understand that completely.  I am very 

familiar with the event numbers and that’s how Metro does 

it.  I understand that.   

What I am most concerned is now you’re saying to 

me, well, you know, we’re sitting here October 5
th
.  Right?  

Okay.  October 5
th
.  I do want to do an in-camera review but 

you’re kind of saying:  Well, we don’t know what’s there or 

we’re still working with our client.  That is of great 

concern to the Court because they -- I do -- I’ve read Reno 

and I -- anything -- I understand what they’re saying and I 

understand, you know, it’s almost -- and I don’t mean this 

ugly, but, you know, like trust me.  And I don’t mean that 

ugly.  Not you personally, but the client.  You know, trust 

what I’m saying, which is hence why cases like Reno, why I 

-- you know, like if we can’t do a privilege log.  That’s 

our first go to.  I -- do you agree?  I can’t think of a 

way to possibly do a privilege log that would make any 

sense on a body cam, at least for my experiences looking at 

body cam because they’re just random, wherever the police 

officer happens to be pointed -- looking, because it’s 

right here.  So, it only goes to where the police officer’s 

body is looking.  And I assume there is an audio.  

Sometimes they don’t put the audio on.  I don’t know if 

they did or not on this one. 

MS. NICHOLS:  There are -- there is audio. 
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THE COURT:  There’s audio.  Okay.  Because 

sometimes I’ve seen it where they don’t hit the audio, too, 

because, you know, every -- it’s not an easy situation with 

the body cams.  I mean, there’s a lot of things that 

happen.  Okay.   

My biggest concern is if you can’t say to me that 

your client is ready -- I’m not looking at 16 hours.  So 

they have to know, even though it’s under that event 

number, what is or is not related to the actual event. 

MS. NICHOLS:  That’s correct, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Correct?  Okay.  So, do you have any 

feel -- how much information that is? 

MS. NICHOLS:  I do not -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Because I’m -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  -- personally know that but I do 

know that my client knows that. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, so here’s what I’m going 

to do.  I’m going to rule that I’m going to do an in-camera 

review under the Reno Newspaper versus Gibbons case to look 

at the footage and I want all of it.  Okay?  I want what 

you say is privileged.  Everything that is related to this 

event.  I don’t want any of the 16 hours that’s not.  Don’t 

overwhelm me with footage that’s not applicable.  Okay?   

Yes? 

MS. MCCARTY:  Your Honor, I do not see how that 
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provides me the information I need to make an argument on 

the 17
th
.  Metro’s counsel is standing here making -- 

THE COURT:  Well, it certainly provides me with 

the information to understand their viewpoint.  You -- 

MS. MCCARTY:  But how am I supposed to defend 

against their position if I do not know what’s on the tape?  

They haven’t even seen it and they’re making 

representations to you -- 

THE COURT:  Oh, don’t yell.  Don’t yell.  Don’t 

yell.  Don’t don’t don’t do that in this courtroom.  I’m 

not putting up with this.  This is not appropriate 

behavior. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  I will be able to know.  I’m the one 

that has to make the decision whether it’s privileged or 

not.  You can give me the information you have as to why 

you don’t think the privilege applies.  I can look at the 

video and listen to your fact -- your argument as to why 

you think I can listen to their argument and why it is and 

I can make the decision.  I’m very comfortable with that.  

I’ve -- and that’s what I’m doing.   

What I am requiring is that you give me the video 

because these general statements of, well, it generally 

includes juveniles, or because it’s under an event number 

that includes juveniles -- I haven’t looked at the statute, 
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but that’s extremely broad.  Your answer is:  We don’t want 

anything that -- you know, that involves juveniles.  You’ve 

said it in your papers.  Because you can’t get it.  You 

cannot give it under the privilege.  But if there’s 

information that includes Aaron Ford -- I mean, I know what 

you’re looking -- I’m educated.  I mean, I have been 

educated on your papers.  I do understand why you want this 

information and if it’s not privileged, why you are 

entitled to it.  If it’s privileged, you’re not.  I need to 

look at it.   

I know both sides -- so, my concern is when can 

you get it to me because I’m not -- the hearing is the 17
th
.   

And I -- once again, don’t give me 16 hours.  So I’m not 

going to be buried in things that I have -- as you know, I 

ethically do my duty, but I can’t look through 16 hours, in 

fairness.  So I’m looking to you to make sure what you’re 

giving me is tailored to what the plaintiffs are asking 

for.  All right?  We’re all on the same page on that? 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  It’s not like I’m an attorney 

out there and you’re getting -- you know, I just had a case 

where -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  So, -- 

THE COURT:  -- they gave 1,000 documents and maybe 

two in the whole 1,000 were relevant to the request.  I 
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can’t do that.  

MS. NICHOLS:  So, what I propose to do, Your 

Honor, is contact my client after this hearing and I can 

then either send a letter or contact your JEA along with 

opposing counsel and let you know and how quick we get it 

to you. 

THE COURT:  Well, -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  By this afternoon I can have an 

answer for you. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I’m trying to think if you guys 

want to come back Tues -- what’s on Tuesday?  I’m just -- I 

always -- I get concerned when people start doing e-mails 

and I have time constraints.  I’m not real comfortable how 

this e-mail has already gone in this case.  So, let’s do 

this.  Please do that. 

[Colloquy at the bench] 

THE COURT:  Hold on.  Let me just look at my 

calendar. 

[Colloquy at the bench] 

THE COURT:  Let me look -- this courtroom is being 

updated for JAVS next week.  So I can’t use it.  So I’ve 

been requesting other courtrooms.  So, I don’t think we can 

get one Wednesday.  Right?  I can’t -- hold on just a 

minute. 

[Colloquy at the bench] 
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THE COURT:  Hold on a minute.  I’m sorry.  Work 

with me.  They don’t make it easy.  Because I’ve set you on 

the 17
th
, this Wednesday. 

[Colloquy at the bench] 

THE COURT:  Well, if I set you, I want to tell you 

what courtroom I’m in. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Well, yes. 

THE COURT:  It would help.  Right?  Would that 

help? 

MS. MCCARTY:  That would. 

[Colloquy at the bench] 

THE COURT:  Hold on and I’ll tell you how I want 

to work this the best I can.  All right.  We’re pretty sure 

it’s 11C.  Right, Liz? 

THE JUDICIAL EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Okay.  Okay.  Here’s what 

I’m going to do.  11C.  Right?  Thanks.  

I don’t know who that is.  11C.  Do you -- 

Department -- 

THE CLERK:  Department 21. 

THE COURT:  Department 21, 11C.  Just find 11C.  

Go to the 11
th
 floor.  I’m 12D.  So, it’s to the right on 

11.   

So, what I’m going to do for next Tuesday, which 

is October 9
th
, I’m going to order that we come back on a 

JA000175



 

 37 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

status check.  At that time, I’m expecting to be able to 

review video that you are asserting is relevant to this 

case and relevant to their request is available in some 

kind of capacity so I can review it for the 17
th
 hearing.  

If it’s not, I need a due diligence or a good faith reason 

why your client can’t do that.  Okay? 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Because that’s the only fair way for 

me to look at it and be ready for the 17
th
 because I don’t 

want to continue that.  And that’s why I did this.  So, 

we’ll set it -- I don't know what else is on but I’ll -- 

for October 9
th
 in Department 4 but I’m going to be in 

courtroom 11C.  So don’t get confused.  Okay? 

MS. NICHOLS:  And at what time, Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  9 o’clock.   

And what I’ll do -- what I try to do -- I don't 

know how long that calendar is.  If yours is a little bit 

quicker, what I do with my marshal and my law clerk, I 

don’t go by how you are on your calendar page.  I go by how 

quickly I feel I can handle your argument or, you know, if 

something’s a big, long, you know, we had a three-hour one 

yesterday on a summary judgment, I make sure I’m as 

efficient as I can for you guys, too, that I do it in that 

order.  So just because I’m now putting you the last on the 

calendar doesn’t -- that does not mean that at all.  Okay.  
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I try very much to be efficient that way. 

MS. MCCARTY:  And, Your Honor, just for the sake 

of clarification, -- 

THE COURT:  Sure. 

MS. MCCARTY:  -- so will you be viewing the video 

from this entire event?  I’m -- 

THE COURT:  I am going to view what -- I don't 

know what you mean by entire event.  What I said to them I 

want to review everything that is under the request, which 

includes Aaron Ford in it and anything related to this 

event.  The event number and what’s gone under that, not 

because it happens to be on it.  And I know Metro knows the 

difference on that. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Trust me they do because they know the 

difference.  Okay?  So, that’s what I need to review. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Understood, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Not even the juvenile -- what 

they -- they’re saying they whole thing is privileged.  

Okay?  I -- at least -- right? 

MS. NICHOLS:  To the -- that depicts the actual 

event, yes.  The -- there’s hours beforehand, those -- 

that’s not related. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  And that’s the hours that you don’t 
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want. 

THE COURT:  I don’t want to view that.  I don’t 

want to review -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  -- anything that’s not relevant. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  It would not help the plaintiff and it 

will certainly will -- 

MS. NICHOLS:  I understand, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  I’m plenty busy.  I have no problem 

reviewing what’s relevant. 

So, everything that has to do with this event 

number that’s relevant to this event number. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  Which would -- so -- which, Ms. 

McCarty, that actually gives me the whole range, which I 

need, not just -- since I kind of thought it might be 

piecemealed, they’re going to give you some of Aaron Ford, 

but if their position is broad, that even makes me more 

want to do an in-camera review to do a fair ruling on this.  

So, prefect.  Okay?   

So I’ll see you back here 9 o’clock.  Don’t 

forget.  11C.  Make sure whoever you need to -- I mean, 

because somebody may look it up in your office and they go 

-- you know, maybe we could put a sign out there, too.  
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We’ll do that.  If for some reason somebody forgets in your 

office or somebody else comes, we’ll put a sign out here 

where I am those days.  Okay?  Because I’m in three 

different courtrooms. 

MS. NICHOLS:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  All right.  You’re welcome. 

MS. MCCARTY:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  So really what I’ going to do is I’m 

going to continue this hearing until then.  Right now I 

need further information to do my in-camera review, but 

I’ll continue the hearing in case something comes then that 

changes my perception on what I should do on this because 

in case -- do you know where I’m going with this?  In case 

I -- I think he knows where I’m going with it.  In case I’m 

not getting what I need to do an in-camera review, then 

we’ve got to figure -- then I may have to do another 

ruling.  So, let’s do it that way.   

And I’m not calling it a tentative ruling, but I 

need that piece of information to rule what I think is 

appropriate.  I think I’ve clarified that.  Like, you’re 

right, sometimes when I try to clarify it, I’m going -- but 

as long -- you understand where I’m going -- your client.  

MS. NICHOLS:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Because that’s the most 

important.  All right.  Thank you.  You guys have a good 
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weekend. 

MR. CROSBY:  Thank you, Your Honor.  You as well. 

MS. MCCARTY:  You too. 

THE COURT:  You too.  See you in 11C 

 

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 9:42 A.M. 

*   *   *   *   * 
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CERTIFICATION 

 

 

 

 

I certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript from 

the audio-visual recording of the proceedings in the 

above-entitled matter. 

 

 

 

 

AFFIRMATION 

 

 

I affirm that this transcript does not contain the social 

security or tax identification number of any person or 

entity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 KRISTEN LUNKWITZ  

 INDEPENDENT TRANSCRIBER 
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